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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

V& | . No. 1:CR-05493
MICHAEL CURTIS REYNOLDS, ,
Defendant FILED
SCRANTON
ED ENT 0T +3 7006
THE GRAND JURY CHARGES: 1
PER__ |
_ DEPUYY GLERK
INTRODUCTORY ALLEGATIONS

o, At_all_times relevant to this Indictment, Al-Qaeda was an intemational terrorist group
dedicated to opﬁoﬁing govemnments not established under strict Islamic Jaw. The group was
founded by Usama bin Laden and others. Bin Laden declared a jihad, or holy war, against the
United States and its ¢itizens, which he camad out through Al-Qaeda and its affiliated
orgamzatlous Al-Qaeda was desxgmtcd by the Secretary of State as a foreign terrorist
organization pursuant to Section 219 of the Immigration and Nationality Act on October 8, 1999,
and has remamed 50 des:gnated from that time until the time of this Indictment.

2. OBLcrew (Osama an Laden Crew) isa Yahoo internet chat group that permits users
0 read comments posted by othcr uscrs and to post comment that other users may read In
| apprommately Octobcr 2005 the Dcfendant Mlchacl Curhs Reynolds a’k/a “Fritz Mueller,”
postcd commcnts at the OBurew chat group sohcmng help to compel United States
Govemmcnt ofﬁcmls to retum soidlers to the Umtcd States th;rough terronst activities.

3. The Defendant I,;;gan ;qmmur}manpg_ t}uough _Lhc_ p;tpmet with an individual the

Defendant believed to be a member of Al-Qaeda. This individual is known to the Grand Jury
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and was not, in fact, gfﬁliated w_iﬁ: ﬁnat or any other foreign terrorist organization.

4, Th§ Defendant offered to assist Al—Qaeda in cngagihg in acts of terrorism within the
United States b‘y.;.Jerfci'ming the. services of idéhtifying targets, planning terrorist attacks, |
describing bomb malcmg methodé, among other services. Specifically, the Defendant' sought to
enlist separate “units” éoﬁsisﬁng of Al-Qaeda x_m:ﬁ_}bers to carry out violent attacks against
pipeline systems ah_d energy facilities in an effort to reduce energy reserves, create environmental
hazards, increase anxicty, and require substannal expenditure of funds aﬁd government
per_sonnél, ﬁclﬁmg thel ﬁlilim:y, to protect th_ese Idcétions.

5. The Defendant soughi payment for suppiying his aSsi;tance and to continue working
on the behalf of Al-Qaéda and ont or about December 5, 2005. the Defendant traveled to a rest
 stop on Interstate 15 in Idaho in an attempt to retrieve $40,000 that he believed constituted
payment ﬁ'om AinQat-eda n e_kcha.hge for hm séwiées and future services.

Paragré_phs Oné through Five of this _Supefseding Indictment are incorporated by

reference and realleged in each of the Counts below as if set forth in full.

 THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES:
Begmmng in or about Octo'ber 2005 and ccmtmumg untxl on or about December 5, 2005,
~ within the dedlc Dlsmct of Pennsylvama and elaewhere, the Defendant
MICHAEL CURTIS REYNOLDS
: subject to the junsdlcuon of the Umted States, unlawﬁally and knowmgly did attempt to provide
| material support and resourccs as that term is deﬁned in 18 U S C. § 2339A(D), mcludmg

property, service, personnel (himself), traimng, and expert advlce and assistance, to a foreign
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terrorist orgamzanon namely A1~Qaeda, which was dcsxgnatcd by the Sccretary of State asa
foreign terrorist orgamzatton pursuant to Section 219 of the Imnngranon and Nataonahty Act, as
added by the Antlterronsm and Effective Dcath Penalty Act of 1996, Pub. L. NO 104-132, 302,
110 Stat 1214, 1248 (1996) a.nd amended by the I]legal Immigration reform and immlgrant
Rcsponsmlhty Actof 1996, Pub. L. No 104-208, 110 Stat. 3009 (1996), ir: or about October 1997
and re-desxgnated in October 1999 October 2001 and October 2003, knowing that Al-Qaeda was
designated asa terrorist orgamzanon under 8 U.S.C. § 1989 has engaged or engages in terrorist
actmty, as that term is deﬁned in 8 USC.§ 1182(&)(3)(8), and has engaged or engages in
terrorism, s that term is defined in 22 US.C. § 2656d)(2).

" In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2339B.

THE GRAND JURY Ff.IRTHER'CHARGES:_
S _ ,
Bcginning inr or al.aout.O.ctober 20085, .and continuing until on or about Decembes 5, 2005,
within the ﬂ&jddl_e District of Pennsylvania and elsewhcré, the Defendant,
- -  MICHAEL CURTIS REYNOLDS,

subject to the Junsdlctxon of the Umted States unlawfully and k:uowmgly did atternpt to provide

' matmal support and rwuurccs, as that term is deﬁncd in18 US.C. § 23 39A(b), mcluehng

pmpcrty scmcc, personncl (hunsclf), h‘almng, and cxpert adwce and assustancc knowing and |
mtenchng that such material support and resotrces were to bc used in prcparat:on for and in
carrying out a violation of Title 18, United Statcs Cade, Sections 844(i) (maliciously damaging
or dgstrdyiﬂg, or attempting to damage or deStroy, by means of fire or an explosive, any thildirng,

vehicle, or other personal or real property used in interstate or foreign commerce or in any
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activity affecting interstate or foreign commerce) and Title 49, ﬁnited States Code, Sections
60123(b)(knowingly and willfully damaging or attempting to damage an interstate gas pipeline
facility). -

In vmlauon of Title 18 United States Code, Sections 2339A and 2.

. THE GRAND JURY FWHER CHARGES:
Q.QM[A
E Bcginri_ing in or about October 2005, and_ continuing until on or @out December 5, 2005,
within the M_id_dle District of Pennsylvania and eisewhere, the Defendaﬁt,
 MICHAEL CURTIS REYNOLDS,

with the intent ._that anqtﬁer f.\erson or persons engage in conduct conétit}lﬁng felony that has as

an clement the use, attcmpted uée,- and thrcatené# use of physical force iga.'mst the property of

~ another in violation of the laws of the United States, and under circumstances strongly
corroborativé of that i-ntent,:_didlsolibit, co_mman&, induce and endeavor to persuade another
person to engagé in sﬁch conduct, that is ﬁ violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections
844(3) (mahcmusly damagmg or destroymg, or attcmptmg to damage or dastroy, by means of fire
oran exploswe any bmldmg, vehu:lc, or other personal or real propeny used in interstate or

_ fumgn commerce orin a.ny s.ctmty affectmg mtmtate or fcrelgn commerce) and T1t1e 49,
Umtcd Statcs Cadc,-Sectmn_s 60123(b)(knowingly and _wmfully damaging or aftempting to
damage an interstate gas pipeline facility).

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 373.
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THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES:
COUNT 4

Beginning in or about October 2005, and continuing until on or about December 5, 2005,

within thé Middle Disttic‘t of Pennsylvania and elsewhere, the Defendant,
- MICHAEL CURTIS REYNOLDS,
did knowingly distribute ﬂarough'th‘c Internet information pertaining to, in part, the manufacture
- and use of an explosive and destructive device, with the intent that the information be used for,
and in furth.erance of, an activity that constitutes a Federal crime of violence, that is a violation of
Title 18, United Stétes Code, Sections 844(i)(maliciously damaging or destroying, or attempting
to damage or destroy, by means of fire or an explosive, any building, vehicle, or other personal or
real property used in interstate or foreign commerce or in any activity iffecting interstate or
foreign commerce) and Title 49, United States Code, Sections 60123(b)(knowingly and willfully
dAﬁaging or aﬁcmi)_tihg to damage an interstate gas pipeline facility).
" In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 842(p)(2).

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES:

| COUNT S

On and bafore Apnl 23 2005 in the Mlddle Dlstnct of Pennsylvama, the Defendant,

MICHAEL CURTIS REYNOLDS

did knowmgly and unIawful[y possess a ﬁrcarm that i is,a destructive device (explosive grenade),
not regstered to hun in the National Fxrcarms Reglstratlon and Transfer Record.

In violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 5841, 5861{(d) and 5871.
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THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES:
Qn and before December 5', 2005, in the Middle District of Pennsylvania, the Defendant,
' MICHAEL CURTIS REYNOLDS,
did lmowihgly and ﬁnlaﬁrﬁllly possess a firearm, that is, é destructive device (explosive grenade),
not registﬁ;ed to him in _thé National Fireanms Registration and Transfer Record.

In violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 5841, 5861(d) and 5871.

ATRUE BILL:

Jo /3 /v

DATE

United States Attomey




